
 
 
The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately 
committed to raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its 
educational objectives. 

 

ANNUAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
OF THE IIMC FOUNDATION 

SHERATON BIRMINGHAM HOTEL 
FRIDAY, MAY 17, 2019, 3 P.M. 
BIRMINGHAM BALLROOM 3 

SATURDAY, MAY 18, 2019, 10 A.M. 
FLOOR 4, CHAMOMILE MEETING ROOM, #407 

 
Teleconference:  800-220-9875 

Leader: 43572994, Participant: 64644970 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.  Call to order 
 

2.  Roll call 
 
Administration 
 

3.  Excusal of absences 
a. Kristie Smithers 
b. Colleen Nicol 

 
4. Approval of minutes 

a. October 28, 2018 – Midyear (pg. 10-14) 
b. February 6, 2019 – E-Vote (pg. 15) 
c. March 14, 2019 – Telecon (pg. 16-18) 
d. April 5, 2019 – E-Vote (pg. 19) 

 
5.  Executive Committee Report (Nicol) 

a. Annual Report 
b. Report to IIMC Board of Directors 

 
6.  Finance Committee Report (Schneider) 

a. Treasurer’s Report (pg. 28-53) 
b. 2018/19 Budget Update (pg. 54-56) 
c. Investment Policy (pg. 57-69) 

 
 

7



The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately 
committed to raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its 
educational objectives. 

 
 
 
 

7. Bylaws Committee Report (Wolf) (pg. 70) 
 

8. Nominating Committee Report (Stratta) (pg. 71-72) 
a. 2019/2020 Officers, effective following meeting 
b. Creation of Development Committee 

 
9.  IIMC Foundation Welcome Table (Reese) 

 
Fundraising 
 

10.  Donor Giving Levels (Hammerstrom) 
 

11.  2019/2020 Committee Assignments (Stratta) 
 

12.  Legacy Program 
a. Tracking of Legacy Donations (Reese/Schneider) 
b. Recognition of Legacy Donations (Reese/Schneider) 
c. Donna Young Legacy Donation (Schneider) (pg. 73-78) 

 
13.  RoundUp App (Shalby) (pg. 79-81) 

 
RECESS TO SATURDAY, MAY 18, 2019, 10 A.M. 
 
Fundraising 
 

14.  Fundraising Workshop (Hussey) 
 

15.  Revenue Growth Committee Report (Devine) 
 

16.  Special Events Committee Report (Reese/Schneider) 
 

17.  Marketing Committee/Business Partners Council Report (Henley) (pg. 82-
83) 
 

18.  Evolving Into the Future Committee Report (Henley/Smithers/Reese) 
 

19.  2018/2019 Strategic Plan Review (Hussey) (pg. 84-87) 
  

8



 

The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately 
committed to raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its 
educational objectives. 

 
 
 

20.  2019/2020 Strategic Plan Development (Hussey) 
a. Revenue Growth 
b. Special Events 
c. Marketing/Business Partners 
d. Evolving Into The Future 

 
21.   Adjourn 

 
Attachments: 
Roster (pg. 88-90) 
Travel Reimbursement Form (pg. 91) 

9



The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately committed to 
raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its educational objectives. 

 

  Page 1 
 

                                               

IIMC FOUNDATION MINUTES 
SUNDAY, OCTOBER 28, 2018 
LITTLE ROCK MARRIOTT 

LITTLE ROCK, AR 
 

Call to Order – President Colleen Nicol called the meeting to order at 8:30 am. 
 
Roll Call – Members present were:  President Colleen Nicol, Vice President Mary Lynne Stratta, Treasurer 
Roxanne  Schneider,  Secretary  Faith  Elford,  IIMC President  Stephanie Kelly,  IIMC President  Elect  Lana 
McPherson, IIMC Vice President Mary Johnston, and Board Members Dale Barstow, Buster Brown, John 
R. Devine, Melissa Henley, Dyanne C. Reese, Kristie Smithers, Stephen G. Wolf, and non‐voting members 
Jane Long and Chris Shalby.  Also, in attendance was Wayne Hussey.  Absent were Beverly Hammerstrom, 
Dan Hussey, and Cristina LoVerde. 
 
Fundraising 
 
Finance Committee report  
Treasurer Schneider reported that the Finance Committee and the Special Events Committees have 
been discussing the use of Square, to make credit card purchases easier for those winning Silent Auction 
items; bracelets; and raffle tickets.  The finance committee agreed that this would be a benefit and 
recommends proceeding with Square.  The finance committee also discussed obtaining an IIMC 
Foundation credit card.  The committee agreed to a card, with a set of guidelines.   
 
Treasurer Schneider reviewed the 2018 Budget status through the first three quarters of 2018. 
 
The Board reviewed the Investments update pages in our meeting packet.  It was noted that even in this 
volatile climate in the market, we are continuing our financial strategy as in the past.  You need to 
always think long term.  Member Barstow stated that we have not added anything to our unrestricted 
fund yet this year; but he anticipates moving $20,000 into unrestricted funds after year end bills.  Dale 
stated that we have had a 6.53% return on restricted over the course of the fund start in 2004. 
 
Treasurer Schneider reviewed various reports including the list of the Summary of Restricted Funds as of 
August 31, 2018;  the Total  Investment balance sheet as of August 31, 2018  that shows  that our  total 
investments have gone from $2,377,124.89 to $2,562,450.29 in the last year.  Everyone then reviewed 
the Quarterly Dues Comparison Reports that show members contributions when they pay their dues – 
paid either by the individual or the municipality.   
 
Marketing Committee report  
Chair Melissa Henley reported marketing has been busy updating the website.  It was reported that the 
committee launched a volunteer program and have new volunteers helping with the website; Facebook 

10



The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately committed to 
raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its educational objectives. 

 

  Page 2 
 

& Amazon Smile, and with the Hawaii Promo. Conference T‐Shirts have been taken over by Marketing, 
and a sports t‐shirt has been created for Birmingham.  The t‐shirt will sell for $25 and be available in 
sizes S‐2XL but will hopefully find a vendor where the shirts will only cost $4‐$5 each to produce.  Chair 
Henley also reported that they are investigating if there is a vendor where people not going to 
conference can go to a website and buy and have a t‐shirt shipped to them.  Marketing is also looking 
for a new charm for bracelets again for Birmingham and will be working on new promotional materials 
for Region Directors and will continue to market Amazon Smile. 
 
It was noted that Monday of the Birmingham Conference is the all‐conference event day and we are 
going to the ball park so will be a great day to wear the T‐Shirt.  
 
Revenue Growth Committee report  
Chair John Devine discussed a campaign to try to move givers from one category to the next.  Marketing 
is willing to create briefing information.  Looking for a possible incentive to get people to give and go up 
a society. 
There was discussion about putting a bill stuffer in the dues statements next year to promote the giving 
to the Foundation. 
The Board discussed the Legacy program.  It was stated that people under 50 do not want to talk about 
their wills yet.  Wayne Hussey stated that the mode range for the decision to do a legacy is 67; with 
earliest being 58; up to 72.  Hussey stated that still the best way to get more money is to talk to people 
and tell them a story.  Increase the frequency of telling our story.  There was discussion about the age of 
the IIMC members and the best way to reach out to them.  Chris Shalby reported that the bulk of the 
membership is still 47 or older. 
Devine discussed the on‐line auction idea again.  The committee is going to ask the membership if they 
know of a site that is easily handled and is there someone that could help with this.  To get gifts; etc. 
 
Special Events Committee report 
Member Smithers reported that the Special Events Committee is going to revamp the Silent Auction‐
creating marketing materials for donations.  The Santa Claws campaign is open right now and there have 
been 71 entries so far for $610.  The drawing is November 9th.  The Conference Registration raffle is also 
open and has 344 entries so far for $1365. 
 
President Nicol gave an update on the Hawaii Raffle promotion stating that the growth potential is the 
pre‐sales and they are working on that. 
 
Report on IIMC Board actions  
IIMC President Stephanie Kelly reported that the IIMC Board voted to give the IIMC Foundation $6,200 
from sponsorship revenue; and a total of $1900 from the $100 per exhibitor. 
 
Workshop on Fundraising Strategies 
Wayne Hussey wanted to encourage the foundation to make more money and he feels there is a great 
potential to do so. 
 
Strategic Plan update  
Wayne Hussey stated that in May, we talked about the fact that $373 billion dollars are donated in the 
United States each year.  Fatigue of giving is from being asked poorly.  Statistics actually show that the 
less you make the more you give and that women give more than men.  IIMC has more women with 47+ 

11



The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately committed to 
raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its educational objectives. 

 

  Page 3 
 

as the average age of our membership.  You also give to what really matters to you.  We cannot talk people 
into giving by how we present our info but with a story.  There needs to be conversations.  Started out 
many years ago with less than $400,000 and now we have $2.5 M dollars in the foundation.  Phone calls 
and letters can work but face to face is still the best.  Society giving is only $4,393 so far this year. 
 
There was discussion about creating a video.  It was stated that the IIMC Board is going to commit to give 
$3,000 for a professional cameraman to do a video.  The primary message is to talk about our story. Wayne 
will send out scripts. 
 
Committee Meetings 
President Nicol asked the committees to break out at this point in the meeting and polish their part of 
plan.  The results of the committee meetings were as follows. 
 
A #5 was added to the Strategic Plan – called ‘Into the Future’s Group’ ‐Kristie Smithers, Melissa Henley 
and Dyanne Reese will be the team.  The Futures group talked about getting a video together to put on 
U‐Tube and attach  to our Facebook page and website.   They discussed asking  this year’s  scholarship 
winners to do a testimonial at the Birmingham Conference.  Then put it on U‐Tube and have a button to 
make an immediate donation.   
 
Marketing  and  Business  Council met  together  –  The marketing  goals  are  to  launch  and  promote  to 
members  monthly  promotions  with  mentoring.    Another  target  will  be  non‐givers  with  perhaps  a 
campaign of giving up a cup of coffee and give to the IIMC Foundation instead. 
 
Revenue Growth  stated  that  they will  review  the  IIMC  Foundation  forms  and portals  to  simplify  the 
donation process.  They also discussed contacting the Turtle Society; writing an email to find volunteers 
to raise donation; and to investigate targeting elected officials to encourage donations in honor of their 
clerk during Municipal Clerks Week. Revenue Growth is also working to add a dues stuffer that will go out 
in 2019 and will investigate a Legacy Program campaign. 
 
Special Events reported that they have added to their list that there needs to be training of future people 
to help with the Silent Auction and the Raffle table. 
 
2019 Budget Adoption  
Treasurer Schneider reviewed the proposed 2019 budget that was developed by the Finance Committee.  
After discussion and amendments to some line items to fit the Strategic Plan, the proposed 2019 Income 
is $157,688.  The proposed operational expenses are $37,500; leaving a net gain of $120,188.   
 
Member Henley, seconded by Member Brown, moved to approve the updated Strategic Plan.  The motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Member Brown, seconded by Treasurer Schneider, moved to approve the proposed 2019 budget.  The 
motion carried unanimously. 
 
Administration 
 
Excused Absentees ‐ Member Stratta, seconded by IIMC President Kelly, moved to excuse the absences 
of Dan Hussey,  

12



The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately committed to 
raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its educational objectives. 

 

  Page 4 
 

Bev Hammerstrom, and Cristina LoVerde.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Minutes approval  
Treasurer  Schneider  noted  one  correction  with  the  September  27,  2018,  teleconference  meeting.  
Treasurer Schneider was not on the call. 
 
IIMC President Kelly, seconded by Member Brown, moved to approve the May 18, 2018; June 28, 2018 
and the September 27, 2018, minutes with corrections.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Term Limits and Inclusivity Ad Hoc Committee Report  
IIMC President Kelly thanked everyone for their participation.  Member Wolf reviewed  Recommendation 
#1. 

 When there are vacancies‐show which spots will be re‐filled by same person;  

 Need to do better at putting out the seats that really are open; who is staying;  

 and then maybe add volunteer openings;  
Member Stratta, seconded by Member Brown, moved to accept recommendation #1 and re‐word the 
application and add volunteer opportunities and articulate what we do.  The motion carried unanimously. 
President Nicol gave this project to the Nominating Committee. 
 
Recommendation  #2  from  the Ad Hoc  Committee  is  to  have  a  Foundation  Table  at  the  conference.  
President Nicol stated that she is willing to head the committee to make this happen.  Member Stratta, 
seconded by Member Brown, moved to accept Recommendation #2.  The motion carried unanimously. 
 
Recommendation #3 is to solicit Region Directors to get two members from their region to be Foundation 
Partners  –  current  donors  and  possibly  scholarship  recipients.   Member  Stratta,  seconded  by  IIMC 
President Kelly, moved to approve Recommendation #3.  The motion carried unanimously.  
 
Executive Committee report 
President Nicol reported on the Jim Tinnin Scholarship Program.  The program application is open, and 
IIMC Executive Director Shalby will send us  info on how  it  is going.   There could be up  to 22 on‐line 
scholarships.   
 
It was  also  reported  that  the  Restricted  Endowment  intention  designation  forms  are  out  and  have 
received many back but will be working on getting the rest. 
 
Member Barstow gave an  IIMC Coordinator update.   Member Barstow has received many emails and 
chimes in when he can.  More coordination is needed before conference. 
 
President Nicol talked about her Report to IIMC Board.  President Nicol thanked the IIMC Board for the 
new revenue.   She reviewed the work that the  IIMC Foundation does and the make up of the board.  
President Nicol also reviewed the raffles and promotions and asked the IIMC Board to donate items for 
the Silent Auction. 
 
Bylaws Committee report 
Chair Wolf reported  that  the Donor Recognition Committee needed new wording  for Policy 15 –  the 
Donor  Recognition/Awards  policy  and  reviewed  it  with  the  Board.   Member  Devine,  seconded  by 
Member Stratta, moved to accept the rewrite of Policy 15.  The motion carried unanimously. 

13



The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately committed to 
raising endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its educational objectives. 

 

  Page 5 
 

 
Nominating Committee report  
Chair  Stratta  asked  the  Foundation members whose  terms  are  up  in May  of  2019  if  they will  be 
continuing.  Faith Elford stated that she is stepping down due to other volunteer commitments back in 
Wisconsin.   Dan Hussey  is also stepping down due  to work commitments. Steve Wolf stated  that he 
would step down from the Foundation Board is someone else wants to step up in his category and he 
could  continue  to  serve  as  a Business Partner, but he will  stay on  if his  spot  cannot be  filled.    The 
Nominating Committee will also be advertising Marian Karr’s seat.   
The Nominating Committee will also be looking for new officers for the new year starting in May. 
 
Donor Recognition Committee report  
Chair  Stratta  stated  that  this  committee will  bring  names  forward  after  the  first  of  the  year.    The 
Recognition Committee will be looking at the timing of when a person can get in the Hall of Honor. 
 
President Nicol asked  if  there was anything else  for  the good of  the order.   Hearing none,  the  IIMC 
Foundation Mid‐Year meeting adjourned at 12:44 pm. 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 
Faith A. Elford CMC 
IIMC Foundation Secretary  

14



15



 
IIMC Foundation Board of Directors Teleconference 

Thursday, March 14, 2019 @ 2:00 pm CST 
 
Members on the call:  President Colleen J. Nicol; Vice President Mary Lynne Stratta; Treasurer Roxanne 
Schneider; Secretary Faith A. Elford; IIMC President Stephanie Kelly; IIMC President Elect Lana 
McPherson; Vice President Mary Johnston; Dale Barstow; Buster Brown; Beverly Hammerstrom;  
Melissa Henley; Dyanne C. Reese; Stephen G. Wolf; and IIMC Executive Director Chris Shalby. 
 
Absent were:  John Devine; Cristina LoVerde and Kristie Smithers. 
 
1. Presentation on investment portfolio performance from Hans Anderson of Morgan Stanley 

Hans reviewed our portfolio as to how the assets are invested.  Last year was a very difficult 
environment and the unrestricted funds for 2018 were negative - 7.4% down or -$144,000.   So far 
in 2019 we have made it all back.  An investment gain of 8% or $144,600.   He further explained that 
over the long term we have met the objective of over 3.4%.  It is 4.9%. 

 
Their recommendation:  no changes recommended.  They are pretty comfortable with the 
investments.  Trade wars has been factored into market prices and are forward looking and so it 
puts a drag on global growth but not a large detractor.  Price to earnings – international is cheaper 
than US.   

 
Hans thinks our process that we have had for many years, has worked, and we always say not to get 
too excited over short-term losses such as last year. 

 
2. Policy 10 – Scholarships  

Motion by Dale Barstow to allocate up to 6% - which would be 32 scholarships at $400 each for June 
2019 through May 2020.  Buster Brown seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously. 

 
3. Donor Awards 

Chair Mary Lynn Stratta stated that the committee has completed their work.  The 
recommendations are: 
 
Individual Award – Fleming Bell.  Fleming is the retired Institute Director from North 
Carolina.  Fleming has been donating $500 a year for many years and in 2018 donated over $3,000 
to the Foundation.  His support has been consistent.  As an added bonus, the DRC hopes his 
recognition will inspire other Institute Directors to support the Foundation monetarily. 
  
Individual Step Up Award – Stella Atoruk, Borough Clerk of the Northwest Artic Borough in Alaska, 
had the largest percentage increase in giving from 2017 to 2018. 

16



  
Association Award – Ohio Municipal Clerks Association.  They have been consistent with their giving 
and represent the largest association donor that has not already won an award from the 
Foundation. 
  
Association Step Up Award – This was close but the Municipal Clerks and Finance Officers 
Association of Minnesota consistently “stepped up” a bit more than any others and the DRC believes 
them worthy of this award. 
  
Alas, we had no regions to consider this year. 
  
Then as to the new corporate donor award, this was an extremely difficult recommendation for the 
DRC to formulate, as we have so many wonderful corporations that support the Foundation.  After a 
review of the giving history of each back to 2010, American Legal Publishing has given over $94,000 
in cash and in-kind donations to the Foundation since 2010, making them the largest corporate 
donor during the time period 2010-2018.  For this reason, but noting that other corporations are 
extremely generous and supportive of the Foundation, the DRC recommends American Legal be 
awarded the inaugural corporate donor award.  The good news is next year we will recognize two 
corporations – an individual corporate award and a corporate step up award.  The following year, 
corporations will be eligible for induction into the Hall of Honor.  This gives us more opportunities to 
recognize the tremendous generosity of our wonderful corporate partners. 
 
President Nicol thanked the committee and Roxanne Schneider and Kelly for their hard work on 
these recommendations. 
 
Mary Lynn Stratta moved to accept the recommendations; Buster Brown seconded the motion.  The 
motion carried with 1 abstention from Steve Wolf. 

 
4. Committee Reports 

Nominating Committee – Mary Lynn Stratta reported that it is a very exciting time with seven 
applicants in to be considered for the IIMC Foundation Board.  They will be scheduling phone 
interviews. 
 
Executive Committee – no action 
 
Finance Committee – no report 
 
By-Laws Committee – Steve Wolf reported that the mid-year changes were done and the Policies 
have been updated. 
 
Special Events –Roxanne Schneider reported that the Square account is set up and ready for Silent 
Auction payments.   
There was discussion regarding the value of Silent Auction items.  We will to ask for items of $25 
plus and will look at that again next year. 
 

17



Marketing Committee – Melissa Henley reported that the committee has not convened but have 
been working on the stuffer for renewal envelopes; and t-shirts are being worked on for conference.  
The website continues to improve – check it out at:  IIMCfoundation.com  

 
Revenue Growth – has not convened 

 
 
5. 2019/2020 Committee Assignment Preferences – be thinking of the committees you might want to 

be on for 2019-2020.  Mary Lynne would like to hear from everyone as to where their interests lie.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 2:45 pm. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Faith A. Elford WCPC/CMC 
IIMC Foundation Secretary 
 
 
 

18



19



2018
ANNUAL REPORT

Foundation Mission
The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers who are passionately committed to raising endowed dollars whose earnings help 
IIMC pursue its educational objectives.

Visit our website at www.iimcfoundation.com

20



2 2018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

Cristina LoVerde
Rochester, NY

Let Us Grow Together!

President
Colleen Nicol, MMC 

 Riverside, CA

Stephanie Kelly, MMC
Charlotte, NC

Stephen Wolf
Cincinnati, OH

Lana McPherson, MMC
De Soto, KS

Buster Brown, CMC 
Omaha, NE

Dyanne Reese, MMC 
Savannah, GA

Mary Johnston, MMC  
Westerville, OH

John R. Devine  
Ruidoso, NM

Beverly Hammerstrom  
Temperance, MI

 

Kristie Smithers, MMC
Wasilla, AK

Melissa Henley
Long Beach, CA

Dale Barstow
Tallahassee, FL

Jane Anne Long, Ed.D 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA

Chris G. Shalby 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA

Treasurer
Roxanne Schneider, MMC

Dysart, IA

Vice President
Mary Lynne Stratta, MMC

Bryan, TX

Secretary
Faith Elford, CMC 
Fort Atkinson, WI

Board of directors

Non-Voting Members

21



32018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

Dear IIMC Members and IIMC Foundation Donors:

I’m pleased to report on the activities of the IIMC Foundation 
for 2018 which included launch and content growth of the 
Foundation’s first website at www.iimcfoundation.com, con-
tinuation of ongoing fundraising events, continued support 
of IIMC education programs, scholarship awards, honoring of 
donors and successful fundraisers.  The Foundation wishes to 
be great stewards of your donations, support the education 
programs important to you and make giving easy.

Stewardship - Where the Money Comes From
Thanks to the support of IIMC members, Foundation revenue 
reached $134,950 during 2018.  Voluntary donations on the 
annual IIMC dues statement offers an easy way for all IIMC 
members to give.  Encourage colleagues to grow this im-
portant revenue source.  2018/19 IIMC President Stephanie 
Carouthers Kelly, MMC, the IIMC Executive Committee, and 
IIMC Region Directors shared the purpose of the Foundation to 
IIMC members with Municipal Clerk associations and individu-
als throughout all IIMC Regions and encouraged financial 
support.  Voluntary donations, endowment contributions, and 
Conference activities, including the popular Hawaii Raffle and 
Silent Auction, continue to provide significant income.

Throughout the year and at the 2018 Norfolk conference, IIMC 
Members were again offered fun opportunities to donate to 
the Foundation including:

• Voluntary donation with IIMC dues renewal
• Hawaii trip raffle
• Society donations
• Silent auction
• T-shirt and bracelet sales
• Memorial gifts
• Legacy Program

The IIMC Foundation Legacy Program provides IIMC retirees 
and members an opportunity to be remembered and to con-
tinue supporting education programs.  More information on 
the Legacy Program can be found at www.iimcfoundation.com 
or by contacting a Foundation Board Member.

New restricted endowments created this year will provide 
Institute and other education scholarships into the future.  
Although investment earnings over the past year were not as 
healthy as in the past, the historic hard dollar donations form-
ing the basis across all accounts remained protected by the 
Foundation’s conservative investment strategies.

Stewardship - Education Programs -  
Where the Money Goes
The Foundation supported education programs, CMC/MMC 
scholarships, Region stipends and annual conference grants.  
Professional fees include investment, accounting and legal 
services.

Colleen J. Nicol, MMC 
IIMC Foundation President

INCOME - 2018

Dues Contributions $47,240

Sponsorships 8,229

Society Donations 8,261

Silent Auction 7,921

Endowments 27,385

Memorials/Tributes 1,075

Raffles 16,701

Conference T-Shirts 7,690

Edicatopm Funds from IIMC 5,688

Conference T-Shirts 7,190

Conference Bracelets 5,089

Other 171

TOTAL INCOME S134,950

CONTRIBUTIONS TO IIMC 2018

IIMC Education Programs for 2018 $40,632

Scholarships-Restricted Funds 8,400

Scholarships-Unrestricted Funds 3,400

LaserFiche ID Colloquium 1,712

TOTAL $54,144

Continued on page  4

22



4 2018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

Colleen J. Nicol, MMC 
IIMC Foundation President
Continued from page 3

ENDOWMENTS - YEAR END 2018
Unrestricted $  1,812,768

Restricted 575,482

TOTAL $2,388,250

OPERATING EXPENSES - 2018

Board Travel $  4,994

Professional Fees 19,330

Supplies/Printing/Postage 4,942

TOTAL $29,266

Restricted endowments created by individuals and State/Pro-
vincial/National Associations continue to grow and annually 
provide CMC and MMC scholarships.  Laserfiche’s restricted 
endowment supports the Institute Director’s Colloquium held 
at the annual conference.  For more information on creating a 
restricted endowment, see the information at www.iimcfoun-
dation.com or contact any IIMC Foundation Board member.

Making Giving Easy
Watch for easier and direct on-line giving opportunities at 
www.iimcfoundation.com.  The 2019 Birmingham conference 
app will feature a “Donate Now” button.  Electronic postcards 
alerted IIMC Members to the Foundation, its mission and how 
to give.

Donor Recognition
Review the listing of generous donors provided in this report.  
Consider stepping up to the next level of giving.  The annual 
donor reception couples with Step Up Awards presented at 
the conference opening ceremonies to bring awareness to 
remarkable givers and inspire others to join the cause.   
Review below the Hall of Fame, Individual, State/Provincial/
National Association and 2018 Step-Up Awards presented in 
Norfolk, VA.

Hall of Honor Inductees  Christina Wilder

Awards  Allan Susen – Individual Donor

Texas Municipal Clerks Association –  
State/Provincial/National Donor

Monica Martinez Simmons – Individual Step-Up Donor
Arkansas City Clerks, Recorders and Treasurers Association – 
State/Provincial National Step Up Donor

Thank You
The IIMC Foundation Board of Directors sincerely thanks each 
and every donor with special thanks for the outstanding work 
of the IIMC Board of Directors and staff for assistance, market-
ing, fundraising ideas, and activities promoting the spirit of 
the Foundation’s mission and growing its endowments.  Many 
individuals have personally absorbed travel and operational 
expenses to keep every dollar possible earning money for 
IIMC’s members.

In the coming year, watch for the Foundation to enhance 
its website presence at www.iimcfoundation.com, improve 
outreach and giving through IIMC dues renewal inserts, and 
continue its heartfelt commitment to meet our mission to raise 
endowed dollars whose earnings help IIMC pursue its educational 
objectives.

Working for you,

Colleen J. Nicol, MMC
IIMC Foundation President

Thank you everyone who  
participated in the Silent Auction.

23



52018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

IIMC Education Funds - 2018 .........................................$40,632
Restricted CMC & MMC Scholarships ........................... $8,400
Unrestricted CMC & MMC Scholarships ...................... $3,400
LaserFiche Institute Directors Colloquium ................. $1,712

Professional Fees ...............................................................$19,330
Board Travel ........................................................................... $4,994
Supplies/Printing/Postage ............................................... $4,942

2018 Year end charts

Income - 2018   Total Income $134,950

Operating Expenses - 2018 
Total Operating Expenses $29,266

Endowments - Year End 2018
Total $2,388,250

Annual Contributions to  
IIMC Educational Programs    
Total $54,144

Voluntary Contributions from IIMC members –......$47,240
Endowments .......................................................................$27,385
Ra�es ....................................................................................$16,701
Society Donations................................................................ $8,261
Sponsorships from IIMC – ................................................. $8,229
Silent Auction ....................................................................... $7,921
Conference T-shirts ............................................................. $7,190
2018 Education Funds from IIMC .................................. $5,688
Conference Bracelets ......................................................... $5,089
Memorials & Tributes ......................................................... $1,075
Other.............................................................................................$171

Unrestricted ...................................................................$1,812,768
Restricted – ....................................................................... $575,482

24



6 2018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

Endowed Education Funds and Scholarships

z	 A. Fleming Bell Education Fund

z		 American Legal Publishing Corporation Education  
 Fund

z		 Barstow Family Education Fund

z		 Business Records Corporation Education Fund

z		 Charles & Stephanie Kelly Endowment Fund

z		 California City Clerks Education Fund

z		 Charlie Buttiglieri Education Fund

z		 Chris & Patrick Wilder Education Fund

z		 City Clerks of California Scholarship Fund  
 (CA Clerks only)

z		 Coded Systems Education Fund

z		 Dyanne Reese Education Fund

z		 Elizabeth Kiss Education Fund

z		 General Code Publishing Education Fund

z		 iCompass Education Fund

z		 James B. Tinnin Education Fund

z		 Mary Kayser Education Fund

z		 Laserfiche (Institute Directors Colloquium)

z		 Lyall Schwarzkopf Education Fund

z		 Marianne Edwards Education Fund

z		 Mary Lynne Stratta Education Fund

z		 Microvote, Inc. Education Fund

z		 Municipal Code Corporation Education Fund

z		 New Mexico Municipal Clerks Education Fund  
 (NM Clerks only)

z		 Norma Rodriguez Education Fund

z		 OMAR Education Fund

z		 Region IV Education Fund

z		 Reynolds Miel Education Fund

z		 Robert T. Thorpe Scholarship Fund

z		 Robert W. Pritchard Education Fund

z		 Simmons Leadership Scholarship Fund

z		 Tak & Helen Kawagoe Education Fund

z		 Uecker Education Fund

Shinners 
($1,000 and above)
American Legal Publishing
Barstow, Dale  
Bell, A. Fleming  
Bollhauer, Ray
Brown, Buster  
Buttiglieri, Vincent  
Elford, Faith  
Engle, Colleen
Ferguson, Linda -  
 The Portage Foundation 
Frommeyer, Rich
General Code  
Grant, Eric
Hammerstrom, Bev  
Herdelin, Nils
Kelly, Stephanie  
Kopitke, Kittie  
Laserfiche Document Imaging 

 
LoVerde, Cristina  
McDonough, Joseph
Miel, Vicky  
Municipal Code Corporation 
Nicol, Colleen  
Rasmussen, Steffanie
Rodriguez, Norma  
Schneider, Roxanne  
Schwarzkopf, Lyall  
Smithers, Kristie  
Stratta, Mary Lynne  
Texas Municipal Clerks  
Uecker, Anne 
Wacker, Chris
Wolf, Stephen   

Schwarzkopf 
($500 to $999)
Granicus
Henley, Melissa
Hussey, Wayne
Iowa MFOA
Johnston, Mary
Mangen, Debra
MCCi
New Mexico Municipal League
Powell, Millie
Prime Government Solutions
 Region IV (AR, LA, MS, OK, TX)
SMARSH
Susen, Allan
University of Nebraska at Omaha
Volk, Debby

2018 Foundation donors

25



72018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

2018 Foundation Donors

Turtle  
($250 to $499)
Atoruk, Stella
Davis, Tracy
Devine, John and Irma
Dornan, Kathryn
International Institute  
 of Municipal Clerks
Karr, Marian
Kentucky Municipal Clerks
Lemoine, Marc
LeViner, Janet
McPherson, Lana
Minnesota MCFOA
Moore, Shari
Oklahoma Municipal Clerks
Romanowski, Renee
Roth, Debby
Shalby, Chris
Wilder, Christina
Wisconsin Clerks/Treas. & FOA

New Century 
($100 to $249)
Brunt, Heidi
Campbell, Phil
Cirtin, Brenda
City of Norfolk
Corvin, Sharon
Daudt, Janis
Deford, Connie
Duncan, Susan

Hess, Mary Ann
Jansen van Rensburg, Cherel
Ohio Municipal Clerks Assn.
Rekemeyer, Deanna
Ruch, Brian
Town of Marion
Whitbey, Diane
Yellow Rose Chapter  
 (Texas MCA)

Patron 
($50 to $99)
Ahart, Brian
Arkansas City Clerks,  
 Rec, Treas
Benevides, Edward
Benne, Lanaii
Blackard, Barbara
Boeing, Eileen
Bowman, Phyllis
Brito, Candelaria
Burke, Elizabeth
Carney, Leigh
Cash, Jessica
Cassler, Sharon
Chaplin, Dawn
Chittick, Marilyn
Condit, Cathy
Corder, Alicia
Dabney, Shantay
Dawkins, Leanne
DeMasi, Susan
Dillon, Rebecca
Diridon, Rod
Dwinnell, Jean

Fierro, Ida
Gair, Linda
Goodall, Jannette
Graham, Karla
Hamilton, Debbie
Harris, Kevin
Hartman, Laura
Heller, Joy Lynn
Henderson, Marlene
Hensen, Lori
Holloway, Alice
Hungler, Jane”
Johnson, Jacqueline
Johnson, Lisa C
Johnston, Denise
Jones, Joan
Kansas - CCMFOA
Kayser, Mary
Kehrer, Kerry
Koopmans, Andy
Krueger, Billie Jean
Lenz, Kathy
Maine Town &  
 City Clerks Assn
Marshall, Angela
Martinez, Carmen
McCaa, Dineki
Mendenhall, Linda
Michigan Assn of MC (MAMC)
Montejo, Kathleen
Moore, Dolores
North Slope Borough Clerks
O’Brien, Jeanne
Ogden, Lynnette
Palmer-House, Katie
Parker, Kerri

Peeples, Teja
Peto, Kathryn
Pierce, Sheri
Powell, Sherry
Powers, Joseph
Pracht, Stephen
Quinn, Janita
Reed, Cara
Reed, Diana
Region III  
 (AL, FL, GA, NC, SC)
Reynolds, Mary
Robbins, Penny
Rodgers, Anthony
Rogers, Gloria
Saxton, Gregory
Sedlak, Michael
Snider, D. Danyielle
Solomon, Elaine
Spicer-Sidbury, Penelope
Stanker, Kim
Strimple, Eric
Taylor, Wanda
Troyan, Linda
VanBlargan, Clara
Vincent, Nancy
Virginia Municipal Clerks Assn.
Visit Norfolk  
 Convention Bureau
Wainwright, Vicki
Walker, Kathy
Walton, Angela
White, Bernie
White, Lynette
Womack, Ann

Allan Susen, MMC, Individual Donor Award Texas Municipal Clerks Association  
Individual Association Award

Monica Martinez-Simmons, MMC,  
Individual Step Up Award

26



8 2018 IIMC Foundation Annual Report

IIMC Foundation Memorials 
The following is a list of donations made to IIMC Foundation 
on behalf of the deceased individuals.

On behalf of Barbara Bush
Mary Lynne Stratta 

On behalf of Becky Seale
Mary Lynne Stratta 

On behalf of Bill Hampton 
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Brian M. Smith 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks

On behalf of Charles Kelly
International Institute of Municipal Clerks  
Colleen Nicol
Marc Lemoine
Mary Lynne Stratta 
Roxanne Schneider

On behalf of Cindy Burgess
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Connie Mantey 
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Daniel Joseph Komorek
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Eva Marie Hussey
Bev Hammerstrom  
Colleen Nicol 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks

On behalf of Floyd Charles “Chuck” Hauser Jr. 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks

On behalf of J.T. Andrus 
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Kandy Rose 
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Keith Allan Griffin 
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of President George H.W. Bush  
Mary Lynne Stratta

On behalf of Robert F. Long 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks

On behalf of Sarah Carouthers 
International Institute of Municipal Clerks

On behalf of Sharon Conder  
Colleen Nicol

IIMC Foundation Tributes

The following is a list of donations made to the  
IIMC Foundation in recognition of the following  
individuals.

Tribute to Stephen French  
Joseph Powers

 

Arkansas City Clerks, Recorders and Treasurers Association 
Step Up Award

Christine Wilder, CMC, Hall of Honor Award

27



  
20

19
 R

ep
or

t o
n 

M
C

EF
 In

ve
st

m
en

ts
 

 
   

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
D

ec
 3

1,
 2

01
7  

M
ar

 3
1,

 2
01

8 
 

M
ar

 3
1,

 2
01

9 
  Lo

ng
-T

er
m

 U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 
 

P
M

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
$1

,9
14

,0
11

.4
9 

$1
,9

01
,8

14
.1

5 
$1

,9
95

,9
42

.1
2 

 
 

 
   

   
   

  
To

ta
l L

on
g-

Te
rm

 U
nr

es
tr

ic
te

d 
 

 
 

$1
,9

14
,0

11
.4

9 
$1

,9
01

,8
14

.1
5 

$1
,9

95
,9

42
.1

2 
 

  C
om

bi
ne

d 
R

es
tri

ct
ed

 (a
ll 

33
) 

 
   

   
   

 C
ur

re
nt

 C
om

bi
ne

d 
N

ew
 R

es
tri

ct
ed

 
 

$ 
   

58
6,

86
1.

97
 

$ 
   

57
9,

94
9.

47
 

$ 
   

61
9,

06
2.

20
 

 To
ta

l o
f C

om
bi

ne
d 

R
es

tri
ct

ed
 

 
 

 
$ 

   
58

6,
86

1.
97

   
   

   
$ 

   
57

9,
94

9.
47

   
   

   
$ 

  6
19

,0
62

.2
0 

  To
ta

l I
nv

es
tm

en
t V

al
ue

 
 

   
 

$2
,5

00
,8

73
.4

6 
$2

,4
81

,7
63

.6
2 

$2
,6

15
,0

04
.3

2 
  To

ta
l I

nv
es

tm
en

t V
al

ue
 

 
   

 
$2

,5
00

,8
73

.4
6 

$2
,4

81
,7

63
.6

2 
$2

,6
15

,0
04

.3
2 

  

28



2019 Report on IIMC Foundation Investments 
Summary of Restricted Funds – As of March 31, 2019 
 
A. Fleming Bell Education Fund    $5,089.43 

iCompass Education Fund     $6,016.07 

Barstow Family Education Fund    $6,954.31 

James B. Tinnin Education Fund    $28,516.41 

American Legal Publishing Corp Education Fund  $12,617.43   

General Code Publishing Education Fund   $15,224.08   

Laserfiche Institute Directors Colloquium   $59,307.80  

Coded Systems Education Fund    $13,273.87   

Municipal Code Corp Education Fund   $39,225.68 

Robert T. Thorpe Scholarship Fund    $40,250.46   

Lyall Schwarzkopf Education Fund    $40,989.34 

Business Records Corp Education Fund   $11,091.46  

Tak & Helen Kawagoe Education Fund   $39,024.53   

Chris Wilder Education Fund     $11,428.29  

Microvote, Inc. Education Fund    $7,669.86    

Norma Rodriguez Education Fund    $19,093.40 

Elizabeth Kiss Education Fund     $22,070.50 

Robert W. Pritchard Education Fund   $8,598.24 

California City Clerks Education Fund   $52,004.87 

City Clerks’ of CA Scholarship Fund    $67,620.27 

Dyanne Reese Education Fund    $7,086.31 

Mary Lynne Stratta Education Fund    $12,369.51 

Marianne Edwards Education Fund    $23,922.89 

New Mexico Muni Clerks Education Fund   $19,720.67 

Reynolds Miel Education Fund    $6,065.07 

Buttiglieri Education Fund     $8,971.11 

Monica Simmons Leadership Fund    $5,304.80 

Anne Uecker Education Fund     $2,042.16 

Mary Kayser Education Fund     $8,341.06 

OMAR Education Endowment    $10,000.03 

Region IV Education Fund     $2,400.97 

Nebraska Education Fund     $1,782.52 

Charles & Stephanie Kelly Endowment Fund  $4,988.80  

 
Total        $619,062.20 
      

29



IIM
C

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n

Q
ua

rte
rly

 D
ue

s 
C

om
pa

ris
on

 R
ep

or
t

Pd
 w

ith
 M

em
be

rs
hi

p
20

09
20

10
20

11
20

12
20

13
20

14
20

15
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19

Ja
nu

ar
y

$9
,8

60
.0

0 
$9

,1
80

.0
0 

$6
,8

10
.0

0
$4

,7
05

.0
0

$7
,9

05
.0

0
$6

,8
55

.0
0

$5
,0

40
.0

0
$6

,5
50

.0
0

$7
,9

50
.0

0
$8

,5
75

.0
0

$6
,5

00
.0

0
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

$4
,8

10
.0

0 
$3

,8
30

.0
0 

$5
,2

25
.0

0
$6

,8
60

.0
0

$2
,3

40
.0

0
$2

,8
65

.0
0

$5
,6

10
.0

0
$2

,7
80

.0
0

$5
,6

00
.0

0
$3

,1
25

.0
0

$7
,0

15
.0

0
M

ar
ch

 
$2

,3
70

.0
0 

$1
,5

95
.0

0 
$1

,7
35

.0
0

$1
,7

75
.0

0
$1

,8
70

.0
0

$1
,9

30
.0

0
$2

,0
25

.0
0

$1
,8

95
.0

0
$2

,0
60

.0
0

$1
,9

50
.0

0
$2

,8
90

.0
0

Su
b-

to
ta

l
$1

7,
04

0.
00

 
$1

4,
60

5.
00

 
$1

3,
77

0.
00

$1
3,

34
0.

00
$1

2,
11

5.
00

$1
1,

65
0.

00
$1

2,
67

5.
00

$1
1,

22
5.

00
$1

5,
61

0.
00

$1
3,

65
0.

00
$1

6,
40

5.
00

A
pr

il
$6

,9
75

.0
0 

$2
,6

85
.0

0 
$2

,0
15

.0
0

$4
,7

70
.0

0
$4

,4
80

.0
0

$3
,9

55
.0

0
$1

,2
50

.0
0

$4
,5

70
.0

0
$2

,3
25

.0
0

$5
,8

75
.0

0
$0

.0
0

M
ay

$1
,5

65
.0

0 
$2

,7
75

.0
0 

$4
,4

37
.0

0
$2

,0
45

.0
0

$1
,6

00
.0

0
$2

,0
25

.0
0

$4
,0

80
.0

0
$1

,6
60

.0
0

$4
,3

70
.0

0
$1

,7
65

.0
0

$0
.0

0
Ju

ne
$2

,1
85

.0
0 

$4
,2

75
.0

0 
$9

31
.0

0
$1

,1
25

.0
0

$1
,5

65
.0

0
$2

,2
07

.2
5

$1
,8

90
.0

0
$1

,6
50

.0
0

$2
,4

50
.0

0
$9

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

Su
b-

to
ta

l
$1

0,
72

5.
00

 
$9

,7
35

.0
0 

$7
,3

83
.0

0
$7

,9
40

.0
0

$7
,6

45
.0

0
$8

,1
87

.2
5

$7
,2

20
.0

0
$7

,8
80

.0
0

$9
,1

45
.0

0
$8

,5
40

.0
0

$0
.0

0

Ju
ly

$1
1,

41
0.

00
$1

0,
75

5.
00

$4
,9

00
.0

0
$5

,5
99

.0
0

$6
,3

70
.0

0
$5

,9
30

.0
0

$4
,1

25
.0

0
$6

,8
00

.0
0

$3
,4

05
.0

0
$4

,9
60

.0
0

$0
.0

0
A

ug
us

t 
$2

,5
00

.0
0

$5
,8

35
.0

0
$4

,7
99

.0
0

$2
,9

95
.0

0
$2

,9
80

.0
0

$2
,6

65
.0

0
$6

,0
80

.0
0

$2
,9

05
.0

0
$7

,7
60

.0
0

$6
,4

20
.0

0
$0

.0
0

S
ep

te
m

be
r

$2
,1

16
.7

2
$2

,4
35

.0
0

$1
,6

45
.0

0
$1

,7
00

.0
0

$2
,1

80
.0

0
$1

,5
50

.0
0

$1
,9

45
.0

0
$1

,9
25

.0
0

$2
,3

50
.0

0
$1

,7
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
Su

b-
to

ta
l

$1
6,

02
6.

72
 

$1
9,

02
5.

00
 

$1
1,

34
4.

00
$1

0,
29

4.
00

$1
1,

53
0.

00
$1

0,
14

5.
00

$1
2,

15
0.

00
$1

1,
63

0.
00

$1
3,

51
5.

00
$1

3,
08

0.
00

$0
.0

0

Ja
n-

Se
p 

To
ta

ls
$4

3,
79

1.
72

 
$4

3,
36

5.
00

 
$3

2,
49

7.
00

 
$3

1,
57

4.
00

 
$3

1,
29

0.
00

 
$2

9,
98

2.
25

 
$3

2,
04

5.
00

 
$3

0,
73

5.
00

 
$3

8,
27

0.
00

 
$3

5,
27

0.
00

 
$1

6,
40

5.
00

 

O
ct

ob
er

$4
,4

55
.0

0 
$6

,6
30

.0
0 

$2
,6

80
.0

0
$7

,5
70

.0
0

$6
,9

25
.0

0
$6

,1
40

.0
0

$6
,8

10
.0

0
$4

,8
70

.0
0

$7
,3

00
.0

0
$9

75
.0

0
$0

.0
0

N
ov

em
be

r 
$6

,3
85

.0
0 

$2
,5

50
.0

0 
$6

,3
20

.0
0

$1
,6

95
.0

0
$1

,7
15

.0
0

$2
,5

15
.0

0
$1

,4
00

.0
0

$3
,7

50
.0

0
$3

,2
75

.0
0

$2
,7

50
.0

0
$0

.0
0

D
ec

em
be

r
$1

,8
97

.0
0 

$2
,1

80
.0

0 
$2

,3
20

.0
0

$1
,4

70
.0

0
$1

,8
35

.0
0

$2
,1

65
.0

0
$2

,4
50

.0
0

$1
,8

80
.0

0
$1

,8
50

.0
0

$6
,8

70
.0

0
$0

.0
0

Su
b-

to
ta

l
$1

2,
73

7.
00

 
$1

1,
36

0.
00

 
$1

1,
32

0.
00

$1
0,

73
5.

00
$1

0,
47

5.
00

$1
0,

82
0.

00
$1

0,
66

0.
00

$1
0,

50
0.

00
$1

2,
42

5.
00

$1
0,

59
5.

00
$0

.0
0

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

$5
6,

52
8.

72
 

$5
4,

72
5.

00
 

$4
3,

81
7.

00
 

$4
2,

30
9.

00
 

$4
1,

76
5.

00
 

$4
0,

80
2.

25
 

$4
2,

70
5.

00
 

$4
1,

23
5.

00
 

$5
0,

69
5.

00
 

$4
5,

86
5.

00
 

$1
6,

40
5.

00
 

30



IIM
C

 F
ou

nd
at

io
n

Q
ua

rte
rly

 D
ue

s 
C

om
pa

ris
on

 R
ep

or
t

Pd
 b

y 
In

di
vi

du
al

20
09

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Ja
nu

ar
y

$5
00

.0
0 

$3
85

.0
0 

$3
75

.0
0

$4
75

.0
0

$6
15

.0
0

$4
75

.0
0

$2
75

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

$2
55

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

$2
5.

00
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

$1
85

.0
0 

$3
40

.0
0 

$1
50

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$1

00
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$1

25
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$7
5.

00
M

ar
ch

 
$1

40
.0

0 
$1

85
.0

0 
$1

00
.0

0
$2

00
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$1
00

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$1

25
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$7
5.

00
$5

0.
00

Su
b-

to
ta

l
$8

25
.0

0 
$9

10
.0

0 
$6

25
.0

0
$8

25
.0

0
$6

90
.0

0
$6

75
.0

0
$4

25
.0

0
$4

00
.0

0
$4

30
.0

0
$4

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0

A
pr

il
$1

25
.0

0 
$1

00
.0

0 
$1

30
.0

0
$3

80
.0

0
$3

00
.0

0
$1

85
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$1

75
.0

0
$1

40
.0

0
$2

25
.0

0
$0

.0
0

M
ay

$5
0.

00
 

$2
5.

00
 

$1
50

.0
0

$2
15

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$7

5.
00

$1
25

.0
0

$1
25

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

$2
5.

00
$0

.0
0

Ju
ne

$1
25

.0
0 

$7
5.

00
 

$2
5.

00
$5

0.
00

$2
5.

00
$1

25
.0

0
$1

25
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
$0

.0
0

$0
.0

0
Su

b-
to

ta
l

$3
00

.0
0 

$2
00

.0
0 

$3
05

.0
0

$6
45

.0
0

$3
75

.0
0

$3
85

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

$4
00

.0
0

$4
40

.0
0

$2
50

.0
0

$0
.0

0

Ju
ly

$2
50

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
25

.0
0

$2
00

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

$2
75

.0
0

$4
75

.0
0

$5
25

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

$3
00

.0
0

$0
.0

0
A

ug
us

t 
$7

5.
00

$1
00

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$2

25
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$2

50
.0

0
$2

25
.0

0
$1

00
.0

0
$3

75
.0

0
$2

00
.0

0
$0

.0
0

S
ep

te
m

be
r

$5
0.

00
$1

50
.0

0
$1

50
.0

0
$7

5.
00

$5
0.

00
$2

5.
00

$1
00

.0
0

$7
5.

00
$1

00
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$0
.0

0
Su

b-
to

ta
l

$3
75

.0
0 

$3
50

.0
0 

$3
25

.0
0

$5
00

.0
0

$4
50

.0
0

$5
50

.0
0

$8
00

.0
0

$7
00

.0
0

$6
25

.0
0

$5
25

.0
0

$0
.0

0

Ja
n-

Se
p 

To
ta

ls
$1

,5
00

.0
0 

$1
,4

60
.0

0 
$1

,2
55

.0
0 

$1
,9

70
.0

0 
$1

,5
15

.0
0 

$1
,6

10
.0

0 
$1

,5
75

.0
0 

$1
,5

00
.0

0 
$1

,4
95

.0
0 

$1
,2

25
.0

0 
$1

50
.0

0 

O
ct

ob
er

$1
25

.0
0

$1
50

.0
0

$1
25

.0
0

$4
00

.0
0

$3
75

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

$2
75

.0
0

$3
25

.0
0

$2
25

.0
0

$5
0.

00
$0

.0
0

N
ov

em
be

r
$2

00
.0

0
$7

5.
00

$0
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$1
25

.0
0

$4
55

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
00

.0
0

$1
75

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$0

.0
0

D
ec

em
be

r
$7

5.
00

$1
25

.0
0

$0
.0

0
$2

5.
00

$1
75

.0
0

$6
0.

00
$2

25
.0

0
$1

25
.0

0
$1

25
.0

0
$7

5.
00

$0
.0

0
Su

b-
to

ta
l

$4
00

.0
0

$3
50

.0
0

$1
25

.0
0

$4
50

.0
0

$6
75

.0
0

$8
65

.0
0

$6
00

.0
0

$5
50

.0
0

$5
25

.0
0

$1
25

.0
0

$0
.0

0

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

$1
,9

00
.0

0 
$1

,8
10

.0
0 

$1
,3

80
.0

0 
$2

,4
20

.0
0 

$2
,1

90
.0

0 
$2

,4
75

.0
0 

$2
,1

75
.0

0 
$2

,0
50

.0
0 

$2
,0

20
.0

0 
$1

,3
50

.0
0 

$1
50

.0
0 

31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



20
18

 B
U

D
G

ET
IT

EM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

20
18

 A
S 

O
F 

12
-3

1-
18

20
19

 B
U

D
G

ET
IT

EM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

20
19

 A
S 

O
F 

03
-3

1-
19

IN
C

O
M

E
   

  V
ol

un
ta

ry
 D

on
at

io
ns

56
,0

00
.0

0
---

---
---

-
47

,2
40

.0
0

55
,0

00
.0

0
---

---
---

-
16

,6
05

.0
0

   
   

   
 C

E
S

 D
ue

s 
- C

ity
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

45
,9

15
.0

0
--

--
--

--
--

51
,0

00
.0

0
16

,4
55

.0
0

   
   

   
 C

E
S

 D
ue

s 
- C

le
rk

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
1,

32
5.

00
--

--
--

--
--

4,
00

0.
00

15
0.

00
   

  A
nn

ua
l G

iv
in

g
37

,0
00

.0
0

---
---

---
-

36
,7

20
.6

0
42

,0
00

.0
0

---
---

---
-

5,
15

2.
00

   
   

   
 E

nd
ow

m
en

ts
--

--
--

--
--

20
,0

00
.0

0
27

,3
85

.0
0

--
--

--
--

--
25

,0
00

.0
0

2,
29

5.
00

   
   

   
 M

em
or

ia
ls

--
--

--
--

--
1,

00
0.

00
1,

05
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

1,
00

0.
00

10
0.

00
   

   
   

 T
rib

ut
es

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
25

.0
0

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 S
oc

ie
ty

 D
on

at
io

ns
--

--
--

--
--

16
,0

00
.0

0
8,

26
0.

60
--

--
--

--
--

16
,0

00
.0

0
2,

75
7.

00
   

  S
pe

ci
al

 E
ve

nt
s

35
,0

00
.0

0
---

---
---

-
37

,0
71

.8
4

28
,0

00
.0

0
---

---
---

-
7,

99
3.

94
   

   
   

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

Tr
ip

 R
af

fle
-2

01
8 

S
al

es
--

--
--

--
--

7,
00

0.
00

11
,7

56
.0

0
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
   

   
   

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

R
af

fle
-2

01
8

--
--

--
--

--
2,

00
0.

00
93

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

   
   

   
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
Ts

hi
rts

 - 
20

18
--

--
--

--
--

6,
00

0.
00

6,
36

5.
00

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

   
   

   
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
M

is
c 

R
af

fle
s 

- 2
01

8
--

--
--

--
--

2,
50

0.
00

1,
22

5.
00

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

   
   

   
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
B

ra
ce

le
t -

 2
01

8
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

4,
22

9.
00

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

   
   

   
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
Tr

ip
 R

af
fle

-2
01

9 
S

al
es

--
--

--
--

--
7,

00
0.

00
43

5.
00

--
--

--
--

--
7,

00
0.

00
3,

19
0.

00
   

   
   

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

R
eg

is
tra

tio
n 

R
af

fle
-2

01
9

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

1,
68

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
2,

00
0.

00
10

5.
00

   
   

   
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
Ts

hi
rts

 - 
20

19
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

82
5.

00
--

--
--

--
--

6,
00

0.
00

2,
60

0.
00

   
   

   
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
M

is
c 

R
af

fle
s 

- 2
01

9
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

-
67

5.
00

--
--

--
--

--
2,

50
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

B
ra

ce
le

t -
 2

01
9

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
86

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
13

0.
00

   
   

   
 S

ile
nt

 A
uc

tio
n

--
--

--
--

--
10

,0
00

.0
0

7,
92

1.
00

--
--

--
--

--
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

   
   

   
 E

xh
ib

it 
H

al
l R

oy
al

ty
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

1,
80

0.
00

   
   

   
 A

m
az

on
 S

m
ile

/iG
iv

e 
Fu

nd
--

--
--

--
--

50
0.

00
17

0.
84

--
--

--
--

--
50

0.
00

16
8.

94
   

  I
IM

C
 A

gr
ee

m
en

t (
S

po
ns

or
sh

ip
s/

A
ffi

ni
ty

)
10

,0
00

.0
0

---
---

---
-

8,
22

9.
44

20
,0

00
.0

0
---

---
---

-
70

0.
00

   
   

   
 1

st
 Q

tr 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
 '1

8
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

3,
30

4.
50

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
   

   
   

 2
nd

 Q
tr 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

 '1
8

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
72

1.
24

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
   

   
   

 3
rd

 Q
tr 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

 '1
8

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
4,

00
1.

00
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

   
   

   
 4

th
 Q

tr 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
 '1

8
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

20
2.

70
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

   
   

   
 1

st
 Q

tr 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
 '1

9
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
3,

50
0.

00
70

0.
00

   
   

   
 2

nd
 Q

tr 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
 '1

9
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
1,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 3
rd

 Q
tr 

S
er

vi
ce

 C
on

tra
ct

 '1
9

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

8,
00

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 4

th
 Q

tr 
S

er
vi

ce
 C

on
tra

ct
 '1

9
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
7,

50
0.

00
0.

00
   

  O
th

er
 In

co
m

e
5,

00
0.

00
---

---
---

-
5,

68
8.

00
5,

68
8.

00
---

---
---

-
0.

00
   

   
   

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
fro

m
 II

M
C

 (P
ol

ic
y 

8)
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

5,
68

8.
00

--
--

--
--

--
5,

68
8.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 II
M

C
 S

po
ns

or
sh

ip
 P

ro
gr

am
 (B

us
in

es
s 

C
ou

nc
il)

--
--

--
--

--
5,

00
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 O

th
er

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 C

he
ck

in
g 

In
te

re
st

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
TA

L 
O

F 
IN

C
O

M
E 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
14

3,
00

0.
00

0.
00

13
4,

94
9.

88
15

0,
68

8.
00

0.
00

30
,4

50
.9

4

54



EX
PE

N
SE

S
20

18
 B

U
D

G
ET

IT
EM

IZ
A

TI
O

N
20

18
 A

S 
O

F 
12

-3
1-

18
20

19
 B

U
D

G
ET

IT
EM

IZ
A

TI
O

N
20

19
 A

S 
O

F 
03

-3
1-

19
   

  O
pe

ra
tio

na
l E

xp
en

se
s

17
,7

85
.0

0
---

---
---

-
19

,1
66

.8
6

20
,0

00
.0

0
---

---
---

-
3,

21
0.

00
   

   
   

 A
ud

ito
r

--
--

--
--

--
7,

00
0.

00
7,

14
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

7,
77

5.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 A

tto
rn

ey
 F

ee
s

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
49

5.
00

--
--

--
--

--
50

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 N

am
e 

ch
an

ge
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-1

63
.1

4
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 L

eg
ac

y 
P

la
n

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 S

tra
te

gi
c 

P
la

n
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 B

oo
kk

ee
pe

r
--

--
--

--
--

10
,4

00
.0

0
9,

60
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

9,
60

0.
00

3,
20

0.
00

   
   

   
 In

su
ra

nc
e

--
--

--
--

--
30

0.
00

1,
94

5.
00

--
--

--
--

--
2,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 F
ili

ng
 F

ee
s

--
--

--
--

--
85

.0
0

15
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

12
5.

00
10

.0
0

   
   

   
 II

M
C

 D
iv

er
si

ty
 T

as
kf

or
ce

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 O

th
er

 - 
Fa

ci
lit

at
or

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
  O

ffi
ce

 E
xp

en
se

s
50

0.
00

---
---

---
-

99
.9

6
50

0.
00

---
---

---
-

12
8.

40
   

   
   

 M
is

c 
O

ffi
ce

 E
xp

--
--

--
--

--
30

0.
00

99
.9

6
--

--
--

--
--

30
0.

00
12

8.
40

   
   

   
 P

rin
tin

g 
(le

tte
rh

ea
d,

 e
tc

.)
--

--
--

--
--

20
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

20
0.

00
0.

00
   

  A
nn

ua
l F

un
d 

R
ai

si
ng

 C
am

p.
12

,4
00

.0
0

---
---

---
-

4,
84

2.
41

8,
00

0.
00

---
---

---
-

0.
00

   
   

   
P

rin
tin

g 
D

ev
el

op
. M

at
er

ia
l (

C
on

f R
cp

t -
 M

ay
)

--
--

--
--

--
6,

00
0.

00
92

.7
6

--
--

--
--

--
2,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

P
in

s
--

--
--

--
--

1,
00

0.
00

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
1,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

T-
sh

irt
s

--
--

--
--

--
5,

00
0.

00
4,

62
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

3,
00

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
C

on
fe

re
nc

e 
B

ra
ce

le
ts

--
--

--
--

--
1,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

S
ile

nt
 A

uc
tio

n 
E

xp
en

se
 

10
0.

00
12

9.
65

--
--

--
--

--
1,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

A
nn

ua
l R

ep
or

t (
pr

in
t,m

ai
l) 

   
   

   
   

--
--

--
--

--
30

0.
00

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 V
id

eo
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

-
   

  B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

's
 E

xp
en

se
s

8,
00

0.
00

---
---

---
-

4,
99

3.
92

8,
00

0.
00

---
---

---
-

0.
00

   
   

   
 T

ra
ve

l (
A

irf
ar

e,
 &

 T
ra

ns
po

rt,
 L

od
gi

ng
, M

ea
ls

)
--

--
--

--
--

8,
00

0.
00

4,
99

3.
92

--
--

--
--

--
8,

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 B
d.

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

M
tg

. E
xp

en
se

s
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
   

  E
xp

en
se

 S
av

in
gs

 (I
n-

K
in

d)
[0

.0
0]

[0
.0

0]
[7

46
9.

65
]

[0
.0

0]
[0

.0
0]

[7
46

9.
65

]
To

ta
l O

pe
ra

tio
na

l E
xp

en
se

38
,6

85
.0

0
0.

00
29

,1
03

.1
5

36
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
3,

33
8.

40
G

ai
n/

(L
os

s)
10

4,
31

5.
00

0.
00

10
5,

84
6.

73
11

4,
18

8.
00

0.
00

27
,1

12
.5

4

55



O
TH

ER
 E

XP
EN

SE
S 

(C
O

M
M

IT
M

EN
T)

20
18

 B
U

D
G

ET
IT

EM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

20
18

 A
S 

O
F 

12
-3

1-
18

20
19

 B
U

D
G

ET
IT

EM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

20
19

 A
S 

O
F 

03
-3

1-
19

   
  E

du
ca

tio
na

l F
un

ds
 

0.
00

---
---

---
-

13
,5

12
.1

0
0.

00
---

---
---

-
1,

90
0.

00
   

   
   

 II
M

C
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l G
ra

nt
 

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
 C

M
C

 S
ch

ol
ar

sh
ip

s 
($

40
0)

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
3,

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

40
0.

00
   

   
   

 U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 M
M

C
 S

ch
ol

ar
sh

ip
s 

($
40

0)
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

40
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 R

es
tri

ct
ed

 C
M

C
 S

ch
ol

ar
sh

ip
s 

($
40

0)
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

5,
60

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
1,

20
0.

00
   

   
   

 R
es

tri
ct

ed
 M

M
C

 S
ch

ol
ar

sh
ip

s 
($

40
0)

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
2,

80
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 T

in
ni

n 
R

es
tri

ct
ed

 O
nl

in
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 ($
10

0)
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
30

0.
00

   
   

   
 L

F 
In

st
itu

te
 D

ire
ct

or
 C

ol
lo

qu
iu

m
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

1,
71

2.
10

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 S
ta

te
 E

d 
G

ra
nt

s 
($

50
0)

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 D

is
ta

nc
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 ($
10

0)
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 C
on

fe
re

nc
e 

G
ra

nt
s

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 S

pe
ak

er
 G

ra
nt

s 
(II

M
C

 G
ift

)
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
   

  T
ot

al
 E

du
ca

tio
na

l F
un

ds
0.

00
0.

00
13

,5
12

.1
0

0.
00

0.
00

1,
90

0.
00

   
  P

ol
ic

y 
8

0.
00

---
---

---
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

---
---

---
-

--
--

--
--

--
   

   
   

 A
nn

ua
l C

on
tri

bu
tio

n 
to

 II
M

C
 (P

ol
ic

y 
8)

0.
00

0.
00

40
,6

32
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
   

  T
ot

al
 P

ol
ic

y 
8

0.
00

0.
00

40
,6

32
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

TO
TA

L 
O

PE
R

A
TI

O
N

A
L/

O
TH

ER
 E

XP
EN

SE
S

38
,6

85
.0

0
0.

00
83

,2
47

.2
5

36
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
5,

23
8.

40
G

ai
n/

(L
os

s)
10

4,
31

5.
00

0.
00

51
,7

02
.6

3
11

4,
18

8.
00

0.
00

25
,2

12
.5

4

IN
VE

ST
M

EN
TS

20
18

 B
U

D
G

ET
IT

EM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

20
18

 A
S 

O
F 

12
-3

1-
18

20
19

 B
U

D
G

ET
IT

EM
IZ

A
TI

O
N

20
19

 A
S 

O
F 

03
-3

1-
19

   
   

   
 R

es
tri

ct
ed

 E
nd

ow
m

en
ts

 ($
$ 

to
 S

m
ith

 B
ar

ne
y)

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
30

,3
50

.0
0

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
   

   
   

 U
nr

es
tri

ct
ed

 T
ra

ns
fe

rs
 to

 S
m

ith
 B

ar
ne

y
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
   

   
 P

ol
ic

y 
8 

In
ve

st
m

en
ts

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
0.

00
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

0.
00

   
  T

ot
al

 In
ve

st
m

en
ts

0.
00

0.
00

60
,3

50
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

TO
TA

L 
O

PE
R

A
TI

O
N

A
L/

O
TH

ER
 E

XP
/IN

VE
ST

M
EN

TS
--

--
--

--
--

0.
00

14
3,

59
7.

25
36

,5
00

.0
0

0.
00

5,
23

8.
40

G
ai

n/
(L

os
s)

--
--

--
--

--
0.

00
-8

,6
47

.3
7

11
4,

18
8.

00
0.

00
25

,2
12

.5
4

TO
TA

L 
N

ET
 IN

C
O

M
E/

LO
SS

0.
00

-8
,6

47
.3

7
11

4,
18

8.
00

0.
00

25
,2

12
.5

4

M
C

EF
 C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
ns

 to
w

ar
ds

 S
ch

ol
ar

sh
ip

s 
&

 II
M

C
 E

du
ca

tio
n 

Pr
og

ra
m

s 
(s

in
ce

 1
98

4)
   

   
   

 P
re

vi
ou

s 
Ye

ar
 II

M
C

 W
eb

si
te

 S
ch

ol
ar

sh
ip

/E
du

ca
tio

n 
Fi

gu
re

s
1,

08
4,

91
1.

54
1,

13
9,

05
5.

64
   

   
   

   
  (

A
dd

 to
ta

l e
du

ca
tio

n/
po

lic
y 

8 
fu

nd
s 

- C
ur

re
nt

 Y
r)

54
,1

44
.1

0
1,

90
0.

00
N

ew
 F

ig
ur

e 
- N

ee
d 

to
 u

pd
at

e 
IIM

C
 w

eb
si

te
 a

t y
ea

r-
en

d
1,

13
9,

05
5.

64
1,

14
0,

95
5.

64

56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



REPORT OF THE BYLAWS COMMITTEE 
April 12, 2019 

 
Madam President and the IIMC Foundation Board: 
 
The Bylaws Committee was assigned the following tasks. 
 

Revise Policy 15 to reflect the vote at the 2018 Mid Year Meeting regarding Donor 
Recognition/Awards. This has been completed and updated copies of the IIMC 
Foundation Bylaws and Policies have been provided to the President and Secretary.  

 
We believe that that completes our assignment. We will, of course, be glad to answer any 
questions at the annual meeting. 
 
That concludes the report of the Bylaws Committee. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
  Faith Elford 
  Bev Hammerstrom 
  John Devine 
  Steve Wolf, Chair 
 

70



 

TO:  President Colleen Nicol and IIMC Foundation Board of Directors 

FROM: Mary Lynne Stratta, Chair, Nominating Committee, and Steve Wolf, Bev Hammerstrom 
and Buster Brown, Members 

DATE:  April 30, 2019 

 

The IIMC Foundation Nominating Committee has been very busy since the mid-year Board meeting. 

In keeping with past direction from the Foundation Board, the Nominating Committee inquired at the mid-
year meeting as to which Board members with terms expiring in 2019 wished to be reappointed.  Bev and 
Steve asked to be reappointed and Faith informed us she would be leaving the Board.  With Marian Karr’s 
resignation earlier in the year, this created two Class A vacancies.  Daniel Hussey’s resignation created a 
vacancy in the Class B position. 

IIMC was very helpful in getting the word out that applications were being accepted from interested 
members.  Also, for the first time ever, emails were sent directly to all association presidents asking that 
the vacancy announcement be shared with their members.  The application period ran from early January 
through March 15. 

As requested by the Board at the mid-year meeting, the announcement of Board vacancies was reworked 
to make it clear which positions were “really” open on the Board.  The form was simplified and reworded 
to provide a better explanation of the process and Board member expectations.  The Nominating Committee 
was thrilled to receive seven applications (Shari Moore, Sharon Cassler, Vinny Buttiglieri, Mindy Cuppy, 
Jan LaViner, Debby Volk, Lynette Ogden) for the two open Class A positions and one application (Wayne 
Hussey) for the open Class B position, as well as numerous other inquiries.  Many thanks to the Nominating 
Committee members and President Nicol for their work on this project.  Considerable time was spent 
improving the application form. 

The Nominating Committee then spent a great deal of time reviewing applications for Board service and 
gathering information as to applicants’ past support of the Foundation, including any volunteer time spent 
helping with Foundation work.  The Nominating Committee developed a set of questions that were used in 
the phone interviews with the applicants for the Class A positions.  Each applicant was asked the same 
identical questions.  The Committee spent considerable time on the phone interviews with the Class A 
applicants.  The Committee was very interested in the applicants’ knowledge of how foundations work, 
how the IIMC Foundation operates, the purpose of the IIMC Foundation, the primary responsibilities of the 
IIMC Foundation Board, past support and volunteerism relative to the IIMC Foundation, ability and time 
to fully participate in Board functions, history with fundraising, and understanding of the expectation to 
fund raise.  After the interviews were conducted, the Nominating Committee ranked the seven applicants 
based upon all the collective information and responses to the interview questions. Based upon all of this 

71



information, the Nominating Committee is recommending that Shari Moore, St. Paul, MN, and Sharon 
Cassler, Cambridge, OH, be appointed to the Board in the two Class A positions.  Their past history of 
supporting the Foundation and their thorough understanding of how foundations work, and specifically our 
own Foundation, resulted in them receiving the highest rankings from the Nominating Committee.  As to 
the Class B position, Wayne Hussey applied and is, of course, immensely qualified to fill this position due 
to his many years of experience working with foundations and the IIMC Foundation as well.  The 
Nominating Committee recommends he be appointed to the Class B position.  Of course, the Nominating 
Committee recommends the reappointment of Bev and Steve (both Class B positions). 

Through the interview process, the Nominating Committee became deeply concerned about the apparent 
lack of knowledge about the purpose of the IIMC Foundation, how it operates, and the duties and 
responsibilities of Board members.  Following lengthy discussions, it is the strong recommendation of the 
Nominating Committee that the 2019-2020 Foundation President appoint a Development Committee to 
work with potential future Board members to educate them and better equip them to serve as Board 
members.  We believe the five applicants not recommended for Class A positions this year would be likely 
candidates for this committee, as well as other interested individuals.  Also, we recommend this 
Development Committee follow up on the action taken by the Foundation Board at the mid-year meeting 
to have Region Directors (through direction from the IIMC President) appoint two individuals from their 
regions to work with the Foundation in helping to “spread the word” about the Foundation.  Through 
actively recruiting volunteers to get involved with the Development Committee, we can foster an 
environment that brings more informed and better prepared applicants to the forefront each year.  In 
addition, this Development Committee, by working closely with members, can help to address diversity on 
the Foundation Board by actively recruiting members from a wide, diverse background.  The activities of 
the Development Committee should quickly effect a diverse, highly qualified pool of Board candidates 
going forward. 

We are happy to report that three of the five applicants not recommended for Board appointment this year 
were very receptive to an invitation to get more involved with the Foundation next year by volunteering 
their time and learning more about the Foundation over the course of the next year, thereby making them 
more qualified to be considered for Board appointment in the future.  Two of the five have not as yet 
responded to this invitation. 

As to the other item of work and in keeping with the President’s request, the Committee sent an email to 
all Board members inquiring as to their willingness to serve as an officer the next term.  The slate of officers 
recommended for the next year are:  President Mary Lynne Stratta, Vice President Buster Brown, Treasurer 
Roxanne Schneider and Secretary Colleen Nicol.  These were the only individuals who expressed an interest 
in serving as an officer the next year. 
 
As Chair, I want to stress again how hard the Nominating Committee worked this year.  Countless hours 
were spent in reworking the vacancy announcement, perfecting an interview process, conducting 
interviews, ranking applicants for vacant positions, and discussing methodologies to attract a broad 
diversity of applicants for Board service in the future.  The entire Board should be extremely grateful for 
the thoughtful, thorough process they followed in reaching their recommendations. 
 
We thank you for the opportunity to serve. 

 

72



73



74



75



76



77



78



1

Nicol, Colleen

From: Chris Shalby <chriss@iimc.com>
Sent: Monday, January 28, 2019 2:14 PM
To: Nicol, Colleen; Dale Barstow
Subject: [External]  Round Up App
Attachments: RoundUp-App-One-Page-Overview.cleaned.pdf; RoundUp-App-Pricing-

Model.cleaned.pdf

This email's attachments were cleaned of potential threats by The City of Riverside's Security Gateway. 
Click here if the original attachments are required (justification needed).  

I’ve been working with a company called Roundupapp to see if IIMC would be a 
good fit in terms of receiving auxiliary funds.  The more I researched this, the more 
I realized it would be better suited to the Foundation.  See attached information.  In 
a nutshell, members can download the app and anytime they spend money on a 
purchase, they can round up the amount and the difference goes to the Foundation.  
 
For example: I buy an item for $19.50.  I can round up to $20.00 and the $.50 extra 
goes to the Foundation. If 1,000 members do this monthly, that’s $500 in your 
coffers for doing nothing.   
 
Anyways, let me know what you think and we can discuss more.  It sounds fairly 
easy in terms of use, etc. 
 
 
Chris 
 
Christian G. Shalby 
IIMC Executive Director 
Chriss@iimc.com 
909/944-4162 
 

79



How it Works
The Round Up App allows individuals to 
automatically donate the change from their 
credit/debit card transactions to a nonprofit 
they support. 

Once a user has created an account, they do not 
need to use the app while making a purchase. 

Impact
• The average user donates $15-$20/month
• Transform one-time donors into monthly 

donors
• Monthly reporting providing name, email 

address and amount contributed by each 
donor

• Free marketing collateral and support

Zero Risk Pricing
There is no setup cost and no platform fee until 
organizations are receiving at least $100+ in 
monthly donations. After this threshold we have 
a sliding scale between 10% and 1% of donation 
volume. 

Unlock a New Stream of Donations
Allow Supporters to Donate their Change

80



Our Approach
There are no setup costs and no monthly or annual costs. We also do not charge any fee 
until an organization is receiving at least $100/month through the app. 

After this free tier, the fee ranges from 10% - 1%, according to the table below. Note that 
the standard credit card transaction fee (2.9% + $0.30) will still be deducted by the 
payment processor. 

Credit card processing costs are deducted once per donor each time their accumulated 
change is donated. The app will not process a donation until accumulated change is at 
least $1, to prevent you from ever losing money on credit card processing. After you have 
surpassed the free tier, the RoundUp Platform Fee is calculated in addition to credit card 
processing, as shown below. 

*After an organization reaches $100/month in donations, the fee applies to the total amount donated that 
month. However, if an organization does not reach $100 in donations in a month, there is no Platform Fee. 

Pricing Model
Zero Risk for the Nonprofit

From To Marginal Platform Fee

$0 $100 Free Tier. No Fee.

$100* $2,000 10%

$2,000 $5,000 8%

$5,000 $10,000 7%

$10,000 $20,000 6%

$20,000+ Custom

81



 

 

TO:  President Colleen Nicol and IIMC Foundation Board of Directors 

FROM:  Melissa Henley, Chair, Marketing Committee 

DATE:  May 3, 2019 

 

The IIMC Foundation Marketing Committee, comprised of Cristina LoVerde, Mary Lynne Stratta, 
Terri Jones, Lana McPherson and myself, have communicated frequently via email regarding the 
scope of work assigned to us under the IIMC Foundation Strategic Plan. An update on our 
progress is included below.  

Conference T-Shirt 

Thanks to assistance from Cristina LoVerde and General Code, the design for the fundraising t-
shirt was completed. 162 shirts were sold and extras are available for sale at $25 each. For 
reference, an image of the shirt is included.  

 

 

82



Bill Stuffer 

To support the Revenue Growth Committee, a bill stuffer was completed and sent out with dues 
renewals. An image of the insert is below. 

 

 

Website Upgrade and Associated Programs 

Thanks to assistance from Municode, the new Foundation website is available at 
iimcfoundation.org. Updates are ongoing. Please send any updates to Melissa Henley or Colleen 
Nicol. 

Upcoming Projects 

We look forward to developing new promotional materials for regional directors and launching a 
campaign to promote Amazon Smile. We are also ready to assist with any projects to support the 
other committees. We thank you for the opportunity to serve. 

83



. . . . . . . . . .

Wayne Hussey Consulting Inc 

      

The IIMC Foundation 
Strategic Plan 2020 

Wayne Hussey Consulting Inc.                            
October, 2018                                                                                           

  
 

 

 

 

 

  

PO Box 800 
Waterdown, Ontario 
L0R 2H0 
Wayne T 519-841-9424 E whci@golden.net 
Daniel  T 226-747-7878 E whci2@golden.net 
www:WayneHussey.com 

84



BACKGROUND 

On October 28, 2018, members of the Board of Directors of the IIMC Foundation 
gathered to participate in a rapid yet practical strategic planning process as designed and 
facilitated by Wayne Hussey Consulting Inc. The participants of the planning session 
confirmed their Mission Statement and Vision Statement and identified a preliminary list 
of Key Strategic Thrusts. This content is included below.  

           MISSION – WHO WE ARE TODAY 

The IIMC Foundation is a diverse team of volunteers of who are 
passionately committed to raising endowed dollars whose earnings 

help IIMC pursue its educational objectives    

 

           VISION – OUR DESIRED FUTURE 

The IIMC Foundation will increase its fund to $2.65 million by the end 
of 2019 by adding new fundraising programs and expanding current 

programs 
 

KEY STRATEGIC PRIORITIES 

1. MARKETING 

 To launch and promote a Corporate Awards Program 

 To launch Annual Giving Campaigns – ie, Jan = National Mentor Month, Feb = 
Share the Love, March = Get Lucky, June = Back to School, Nov = Holiday 
Shopping 

 To target non-givers – Coffee for Clerks ($5 per month) 

 To better market Society Levels 

 To continue develop and promoting special promotions (i.e T-shirts) 

 To continue the bracelet program 

 

85



 

 2

 

2. REVENUE GROWTH 

 To review IIMC giving platforms 

 To initiate 250 Society Giving Calls 

 To provide the Board with the last 10 years of Society Donors to promote 

 To upgrade Century Society members to the next levels - February  

 To better promote the on-line auction and to recruit volunteers 

 To investigate encouraging elected officials to honor Clerks during Municipal 
Clerk week 

 To add a dues buck slip to our membership mail out 

 To investigate a Legacy Program Campaign Plan 

 

3. SPECIAL EVENTS  

 To have a succession plan for Committee Members 

 To expand pre-sales of the Hawaii Raffle  

 To determine how to expand our special events to all members not just conference 
attendees 

 To engage more Board members in our special event sales 

 To add specialty items with an online bidding program before the conference 

 To use the President’s influence to sell T-shirts 

 To use mobile devices to bid on the auction 

 To add a Christmas in July program 

 To increase our annual funds raised to $50,000 per annum 

 

4. EVOLVING INTO THE FUTURE 

 To more effectively market IIMC to younger age cohorts (Gen X and Millenials) 

86



 

 3

 To start at the local and state levels  

 To develop a IIMC Foundation video and use it in a variety of ways to promote 
the Foundation (including Scholarship winner testimonials, etc.) 

 To use Go Live as a way to promote the Foundation 

  

 

 

87



President 
Colleen J. Nicol 
City of Riverside 
3900 Main Street 
Riverside, CA 92522 
951-826-5818 W 951-826-5557 W   
951-538-3233 C  951-826-5470 F 
cnicol@riversideca.gov 
2021 A 
 

 Vice President 
Mary Lynne Stratta 
City of Bryan 
P. O. Box 1000 
Bryan, TX 77805 
979-209-5005 W 979-776-2305 H  
979-777 -5021 C 
mstratta@bryantx.gov 
2020 A 
 

Treasurer 
Roxanne Schneider 
City of Dysart 
601 Wilson Street 
Dysart, IA 52224 
319-476-5690 W 
dysart@fctc.coop 
2021 C 
 

 Secretary 
Faith A. Elford 
Retired Clerk/F.A.C.T.S. LLC. 
1414 Montclair Place 
Fort Atkinson, WI 53538 
920-568-9278 W 608-322-5144 C 
felford@factsllc.org 
2019 A 
 

IIMC President 
Stephanie Kelly 
City of Charlotte 
600 E. Fourth St. 7th Floor 
Charlotte, NC 28202 
704-336-4515 W 
sckelly@charlottenc.gov 
2019 D 
 

 IIMC President-Elect 
Lana McPherson 
City of De Soto 
P.O. Box C 
De Soto, KS 66018 
913-586-5250 W 
lmcpherson@desotoks.us 
2020 D 
 

IIMC Vice President 
Mary Johnston 
City of Westerville 
P.O. Box 6107 
Westerville, OH  43081 
614-901-6410 
Mary.johnston@westerville.org 
2021D 

 Member 
Dale Barstow 
Municipal Code Corporation 
P. O. Box 2235 
Tallahassee, FL 32316 
800-262-2633 W 850-576-3171 W  
850-556-9113 C  850-575-8852 F 
dale@municode.com 
2020 B 
 

Member 
Buster Brown 
Retired Clerk, City of Omaha 
3518 Poppleton Avenue 
Omaha, NE 68105 
402-444-5557 H 
Bbrown2244@aol.com 
2021 A 
 

 Member 
John R. Devine 
Retired 
P. O. Box 2616 
Ruidoso, NM 88355 
575-937-7325 C 
Devineretreat623@gmail.com 
2020 B 
 

88



Member 
Beverly Hammerstrom 
Retired 
1183 Oakmont Drive 
Temperance, MI 48182 
734-847-8415 H 734-347-3798 C 
bhammer103@aol.com 
2019 B 
 

 Member 
Melissa Henley 
Laserfiche 
3545 Long Beach Blvd. 
Long Beach, CA 90807 
562-988-1688 Ext. 230 W 
melissa.henley@laserfiche.com 
2021 B 
 

Member 
Cristina LoVerde 
General Code 
781 Elmgrove Road 
Rochester, NY 14624 
585-328-1810 
Cloverde@generalcode.com 
2021 B 
 

 Member 
Dyanne C. Reese 
Retired 
1 Topsail Court 
Savannah, GA 31411 
912-433-5835 C 
dyannecreese@yahoo.com 
2021 A 
 

Member 
Kristie Smithers 
Retired 
P.O. Box 872868 
Wasilla, AK 99687 
907-745-1822 H 907-355-2215 C 
kristiesmithers@gmail.com 
2020 A 
 

 Member 
Stephen G. Wolf 
American Legal Publishing Company 
One W. Fourth St, 3rd Floor 
Cincinnati, OH 45202 
513-421-4248 W 513-763-3562 F 
swolf@amlegal.com 
2019 B 
 

Member 
Vacancy 

 Member 
Vacancy 

   

89



IIMC Education Dir. (Non-Voting) 
Jane Long 
IIMC 
8331 Utica Avenue, Suite 200 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
630-418-0947 C 
janelong@iimc.com 
 E 
 

 IIMC Executive Director (Non-Voting) 
Chris Shalby 
IIMC 
8331 Utica Avenue, Suite 200 
Rancho Cucamonga, CA 91730 
909-944-4162 W 909-944-8545 F 
chriss@iimc.com 
 E 
 

Volunteer (Non-Voting) 
Bobby Busch 
City of Neodesha 
P.O. Box 336 
Neodesha, KS 66757 
620-325-4996 W  620-779-1429 H 
bbusch@ci.neodesha.ks.us 
 

 Business Partners (Non-Voting) 
Terri Jones 
Hyland Software 
2309 Wensley Dr. 
Charlotte, NC 28210 
980-219-1765 
Terri.Jones@onbase.com 
 

Business Partners (Non-Voting) 
Tom Duncan 
BoardDocs 
1578 Cleveland Hill Rd. 
Roseburg, OR 97471 
720-608-4642 
tduncan@boarddocs.com 
 
 

  

   

   

90



IIMC FOUNDATION TRAVEL EXPENSES 
2019 IIMC Conference – May, 2019, Birmingham, Alabama 

NAME:                           _________________________________________ 

MAILING ADDRESS:    _________________________________________ 

           _________________________________________ 

 

DAY  DATE  MEALS* LODGING TRANSPORTATION  TOTALS

1 
     

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

                GRAND TOTAL:     $ _________ 

Check One: 

In‐Kind Contribution    $________________      Reimbursement Requested   $______________ 

I certify that I am not seeking reimbursement from the Foundation for any item that is also 

being reimbursed through any other source. 

          Signature:  _____________________________________ 

Date:  _____________________________ 

Please itemize expenses and remit with copies of receipts (required) to: 

  Roxanne Schneider 
  PO Box 686 
  Dysart, IA   52224 
 
*Current per diem is $55 maximum per day for meals.  No receipts required. 
 

POLICY #3 REQUIRES THAT THIS FORM BE SUBMITTED WITHIN 30 DAYS 
 
     

      

91


	MEMBODAGN_051719
	MEMMIN_051918 (1)
	Foundation Nominating Committee 2019 final report.cleaned
	2018 Foundation Call for Board Applicants-2
	BOD_EVOTE_020619
	BOD Minutes-102818
	BOD MIN_031419
	EVOTE_040919
	foundation_2018_annual_report
	YTD MCEF Investments-As of 03-31-19
	Summary of Restricted Funds 03-31-19
	Quarterly Dues Report City  Individual
	Morgan Stanley 3.31.19.cleaned
	2018 Year End Budget -2019 BUDGET as of 03-31-19
	Sheet2
	Sheet1

	Investment Policy_0216
	REPORT OF THE BYLAWS COMMITTEE 4-2019
	Foundation Nominating Committee 2019 final report.cleaned
	Donna Young.cleaned
	RoundUp Email
	RoundUp-App-One-Page-Overview.cleaned
	RoundUp-App-Pricing-Model.cleaned
	IIMC Foundation Marketing Committee report_Birmingham 2019.cleaned
	IIMC Foundation Strategic Plan 2019-2020
	2018-2019 IIMC Foundation Members-website version
	Travel Request Form



